
Exhibit
KOREA MARKETING COMMITTEE (KMC) MEETING MINUTES
Tuesday, December 17, 2024 at 3:30 p.m.
GVB Main Conference Room and GoToMeeting
https://meet.goto.com/GUAMVISITORSBUREAU/kmc-meeting

*online attendance
Members Present:

1. Baldyga Group - Annie*
2. Crowne Plaza Resort Guam - Shwn*
3. DON DON DONKI Guam - Joshua Aguilar*
4. Dusit Thani Guam Resort - Elisha*
5. Guam Hana Tour - Jong In Cheong
6. Guam Premier Outlets - Monte Mesa,* Nicole,* Suzanne Perez
7. Guam Reef Hotel - Yuki Motoda*
8. Hoshino Resorts RISONARE - Eunsan Oh Albert
9. Hotel Nikko Guam - Jenny Cheon*
10. Hotel Tano*
11. Korean Air - Healim Kang
12. Leopalace Guam Resort - Keiko Takano*
13. Lotte Duty Free - Letitia Law-Byerly
14. Micronesia Mall - Anna T,* Francis Lira*
15. Nissan Rent A Car Guam - Mike Tamayo*
16. Pacific Islands Club - Young Min Kim, Koji Nagano*
17. RIHGA Royal Laguna Guam Resort - Nicole*
18. Sentry Hospitality LLC - Valerie Carbullido*
19. Stroll - James Rosenberg
20. The Tsubaki Tower - JM*
21. The Westin Resort Guam - Yoshi Otani*
22. Tommy Hilfiger - Jennifer Garcia,* Jenneth Patricio*

Members Absent:
1. 7-Day Supermarket
2. Arluis Wedding
3. Bayview Hotel
4. Fish Eye Marine Park
5. Goodwind Development Corporation
6. GTA
7. Guam Guam Style Consulting
8. Guam Plaza Resort & Spa
9. Hard Rock Cafe
10. Hilton Guam Resort & Spa
11. Hyatt Regency Guam
12. International Dining Concepts, LLC
13. Jae Yu
14. Japan Buslines
15. Jeju Air
16. Kloppenburg Enterprises
17. Korean Guam Travel Association (KGTA)
18. Lam Lam Tours (T.P. Micronesia, Inc.)
19. Linden Akademia
20. Lotte Hotel Guam
21. Royal Orchid Guam Hotel
22. Triple J Enterprises, Inc.
23. United Airlines
24. University of Guam
25. Valley of the Latte

GVB Board/Management/Staff Present:
1. GVB Director, KMC Chairman – Ho Eun
2. GVB Acting President & CEO – Gerry Perez
3. GVB Director of Global Marketing –Nadine Leon Guerrero
4. GVB Senior Marketing Manager, Korea – Margaret Sablan
5. GVB Senior Marketing Manager, Korea – Nicole Benavente
6. GVB Marketing Manager, Korea – Cierra Sulla
7. GVB Web & IT Coordinator Assistant – Mike Arroyo
8. GVB South Korea Country Manager - Jay Park*
9. GVB Korea Office - GVB Korea team*



1. CALL TO ORDER

● Chairman Mr. Ho Eun called the meeting to order at 3:32 p.m.

2. REPORT OF COMMITTEE CHAIRMAN
● Chairman Eun made remarks on the foreign exchange rate. He said that the FOMC will make an

announcement on Thursday and the Japan bank will make an announcement on Wednesday and
Thursday. Chairman Eun supposed that the current foreign exchange rate will stand still around
1,435 KRW for a while. He said he is expecting a certain change after term trade, which means
maybe within the first 100 days from his inauguration, the foreign exchange rate will be worse for our
tourists temporarily, but maybe about six months from now when the Korean government is
established with a new president, we can expect to see some drops. Chairman Eun continued
saying the Japanese government will probably freeze the interest rate at this moment, by tomorrow,
but in case they raise it up, it will be very good news for travelers from Japan and it will also
eventually affect the Korean won’s strength. He emphasized that we should be watching those
changes and said he doesn’t expect positive news immediately until around six months from today.

3. REPORT OF MANAGEMENT
● Acting President & CEO Mr. Gerry Perez reported on yesterday’s recovery meeting which he said

there was a lot discussed and it involves a broader segment of the community. He said they’re
focused now on just working the plan. Mr. Perez said in his recent meeting they were discussing
smart goals.

● Mr. Perez gave some updates on the airlines. He mentioned that we have Jin Air and Jeju Air flying
in December through April. He said we’re coming close to packaging about four or five million dollars
in airline incentives, which includes Korean airlines. Mr. Perez noted that our South Korea Country
Manager Jay Park has been talking to the different airlines such as Korean airlines, T’way Air, Jin Air
and Jeju Air. He said they’re trying to lock in additional seats starting in April onward because the
additional flights for Jeju Air and Jin Air are for three months but they want to extend that. Mr. Perez
said that the goal is to try to have 55,000 seats through September.

● Senior Marketing Manager Ms. Nicole Benavente presented the latest arrival numbers.







4. MARKET UPDATES
● Ms. Benavente updated the committee on the recent impeachment motion on South Korean

President Yoon.

○ Ms. Benavente presented the timeline of what has happened and the process of the
impeachment moving forward.



○ Ms. Benavente reemphasized the main concern of the impeachment, being how it affects
the exchange rate between the South Korean Won and the U.S. Dollar. She said that with
the news announcements this week, it seems that the exchange rate will stabilize in the
coming six months from now.

○ Ms. Benavente indicated that the impeachment has more effect on inbound tourism than
outbound tourism, as the government is somewhat unstable at the moment. She stressed
that it is mostly the exchange rate issues that affect Guam, which will affect the consumer on
the consumer level when it comes to airfare and accommodation prices, and also on the
airline industry level because it affects the price of fuel.

○ According to Chairman Eun, two and a half months ago, the foreign exchange rate on the
lowest spot was ₩1,310, now ₩1,435, is a huge drop in terms of the value, and a huge
increase in terms of the rate, and that is only less than three months. He said that things
could happen reversely because of Trump 2.0, we expect there will be some influence.
Chairman Eun said if you look at Trump 1.0, the last four to eight years of the period, the
Korean exchange rate at that time was around the ₩1,100 to ₩1,200 range. However, he
said that he doesn’t expect that will happen that way because at that time, Korea itself had a
lot of business with China, so that rate didn't really affect the Korea export. Chairman Eun
said now it is the number one export market, so Korean businesses cannot sell the product if
it goes down to the ₩1,100 range. He said that he expects it’s going to be in the twelve to



thirteen hundred range. Chairman Eun said from a tourism standpoint, it will be stabilized
within six to twelve months from today.

○ Director of Global Marketing Ms. Nadine Leon Guerrero noted that they have added value
with the hotels, allowing people to check in early, which can really offset any additional costs
that they may have. Chairman Eun agreed, saying, especially for red-eye flight travelers.

o Ms. Benavente reported on the recent completion of the Korean Air and Asiana merger
and the completion of Incheon International Airport’s 4th phase facility expansion.

● Ms. Benavente presented the airline schedule for December, January and February.



○ Ms. Benavente said that last month’s airline seats were quite low at about 30,000 seats, but
Jin Air announced the addition of an additional daily flight, flight 915, from December 19th up
until March 29th.

○ Ms. Benavente said Jin Air, which continues to be the only airline to provide direct service
from Busan to Guam, is currently doing so daily because of the winter period, but will go
down to four times a week starting from March 4th.



○ Ms. Benavente shared that Jeju Air announced that they’re adding an additional daily flight
to come in at 3:50am, which will start January 24th to March 3rd.





○ Ms. Benavente pointed out that March was the first month where our arrivals were
slightly lower than the same month the previous fiscal year, comparing ‘23 and ‘24.

○ Ms. Benavente shared they wanted to show supply versus demand to show that
we’re dealing with significantly decreased airline supply in ‘24 versus ‘23. She noted
that in the same month, we had a little over 51,000 seats in March 2023 and in
March 2024, it’s 43,000 seats. She indicated that for the months following that,
despite the decreased supply, it was quite a high load factor. She said that the
arrivals stayed a little lower for months, but because of the higher load factor, it
wasn't as bad as it could have been. Ms. Benavente concluded that for the fiscal
year overall, we ended the year 9% higher overall for FY24 versus FY23.

● Ms. Benavente presented the competitive destination update.





○ Ms. Benavente recognized that Jay Park continues to meet with other airlines, not just the
ones who currently service Guam, but other potential airlines like Air Premia, who is a fairly
newer airline.

○ Mr. Perez asked if Air Premia is U.S. certified, which Ms. Benavente confirmed they have a
long haul to North America. Ms. Benavente added that newer LCCs are doing a lot of long
haul. She shared that some of the responses they’ve gotten from Air Premia was that they’re
focusing on the long haul now.





5. OLD BUSINESS
● Senior Marketing Manager Ms. Sablan presented old business.



○ Ms. Sablan covered the trade mission that was recently completed from November 11-13,
led by Governor Lou Leon Guerrero. She thanked Chairman Eun and Japan Marketing
Committee Chairman Mr. Yanagisawa for their insight and attendance. Ms. Sablan also
mentioned GIAA management who was able to join and provide incentives from the airport.
During the trip the delegation met with Korean Air, Jin Air, Jeju Air, T’way Air, and the U.S.
Embassy. She highlighted that the mission was focused on strengthening our partnerships
and also to dialogue with them further about the airline incentives. Ms. Sablan noted that this
year we have the airline support program as opposed to previous years where it was the
airline co-op and airline incentive. She also noted the GVB Memorandum of Understanding
signing with Shinhan Card. She shared that they’ve previously done different incentives and
promotions, such as a free one night stay when booking two or more nights at various
hotels. Ms. Benavente also mentioned their collaboration with the GOGO Guam Pay where
cardholders got 30% cash back from local spend at F&B establishments. Ms. Sablan said
after running several campaigns with them, Shinhan Card gave a presentation and provided
good data on the consumer spending that was done in Guam during those time periods. She
said that they were able to assess that there was surprisingly a much higher F&B spend
than their estimated goal, so moving forward with different programs and plans, she
supposes that post-promotion strategy could be offering more cash back as opposed to what



they were currently offering at the time to boost offline spending on Guam. Ms. Sablan also
mentioned that the delegation met with the U.S. Ambassador Philip Goldberg.

○ Ms. Sablan discussed their usual offering of travel trade support (Airline & TA Co-op). The
Jeju Air website promotion was from October 22-November 4. From October-November,
they worked with different TAs such as Hana Tour, Verygood Tour, Mode Tour, etc. Ms.
Sablan noted that they have been budgeting for airline co-op consistently every fiscal year.
She said that this year they’ve allocated about $436k for the airline co-op and about $380k
for the TA co-op.



○ Ms. Sablan touched on the Taste of Guam night which coincided with the trade mission. The
event was held at The Class Cheongdam, Seoul on November 13th. The 124pax comprised
the GVB delegation, Chef Peter and Chef Darwin from Meskla, media, influencers, and
travel trade partners. To give background on the project, Ms. Sablan shared that in the
beginning they had influencers as well as Shinhan Card’s student groups come out to
develop collateral and experience different F&B establishments on Guam. The GVB Korea
team used that collateral to put together an F&B booklet. She noted that the booklet is
volume 1 and they hope to keep continuing to further expose different F&B establishments in
the near future.



○ Mr. Perez asked what was the reaction that they encountered from the attendees. Ms.
Sablan said that they really enjoyed the Chamorro cuisine that Chef Peter prepared. Some
of the dishes he made were shrimp burger, different kinds of kelaguen, and buñelos aga
(banana donut). She also mentioned that the dinanche was very popular with the Koreans.



○ Ms. Sabalan shared the recently completed Tour of Guam project with two influencers,
Mindy and Yejin. She recounted last year’s event and how the influencers they brought
placed high, garnering three prizes. Ms. Sablan said this year there were about close to 40
Korean participants from off-island. She remarked that they are developing more content for
our sports market and using their platforms to help showcase the beauty of Guam through
their lens and through the Tour of Guam.



○ Ms. Sablan showcased the influencers’ posts they’ve been making of their experiences in
Guam and hopes they’re able to showcase not just the event itself, but everything the island
has to offer.

○ Ms. Sablan thanked our partners Pacific Islands Club and The Westin Resort Guam for the
complimentary accommodations for the influencers.

○ Mr. Perez commented that “events” is part of the Recovery Plan, so by merging this with the
Japan market, we can have a lot more cyclists coming for the event.

6. NEW BUSINESS
● Ms. Sablan presented new business.



○ According to Ms. Sablan, initially in the previous year they did the co-op promotions and
airline incentives, but this time they also have the support program and that was one of the
major topics that was discussed during the trade mission. She explained that this program is
to support airlines for creating new and additional flights to improve profitability compared to
other competing destinations such as Japan, Thailand, Vietnam, and the Philippines. Ms.
Sablan stressed that it is very hard to compete with these destinations currently, so this is
their response to help alleviate some of those costs to the airlines.

○ Ms. Sablan said that the type of flights is on a case-to-case basis and an increase in aircraft
would also warrant additional support as well.



○ Ms. Sablan thanked PHR and Dusit properties, who during the mission shared the added
incentive of a free night stay for those arriving on a night flight. She noted that the current
offerings that we have are primarily PHR and Dusit properties and their team in Korea has
been reaching out to other hotels to check for their interest. Ms. Sablan also assured the
committee that the HQ office will contact the hotels on their end so that everyone is aware
and able to offer their accommodations to this program.

○ Chairman Eun asked if there are any night flights from Incheon and if there is a need for
early check-in. Ms. Benavente confirmed that Jeju has, but it does not start until January
25th.



○ Ms. Sablan shared the online promotion on the GVB Korea promotion microsite, running
from December 4-22.



○ Ms. Sablan showcased the out-of-home advertisements in the subway being displayed from
December 4-18.



○ Ms. Sablan shared the Taste of Guam co-op with celebrity chef, Chef Choi, who attended
the Taste of Guam Night in Korea on November 12, and who is also coming to Guam for a
two-night event at the Tsubaki Tower on December 17-18 to feature two of his signature
dishes. She mentioned that travel agents were able to sell packages and approximately 200
packages were sold for this event to include airfare, hotel accommodation and the event
itself. Ms. Sablan also noted that both nights were sold out. She added that while he’s here
he will be visiting local establishments and she hopes to see those on his SNS channels as
well.



○ Ms. Sablan shared the upcoming influencer co-op with the New Grey, happening in January
or February of 2025. She mentioned that this is something they’ve done in the past, back in
January 2023 and they plan to bring them to Guam again in order to develop new materials
and collateral to help boost the active senior market in Korea.

● Ms. Benavente presented the FY2025 Budget Summary.



○ Ms. Benavente prefaced that the committee should refer to the last KMC minutes for more
details on how the budget is broken down. She continued saying that a little over $706,000
has been committed, and a little over $4.2 million remaining to be programmed.

○ Chairman Eun inquired about the amount for the travel trade co-ops, to which Ms.
Benavente said a little over $2.2 million is budgeted and $1 million is towards the airline
support, just within the Korea marketing budget. She remarked that management has been
very supportive and is allocating an additional $4 million dollars for a total of $5 million for
airline support. Chairman Eun also asked about the funding, to which Mr. Perez said that it is
coming from unspent, unallocated, uncommitted funds. Ms. Leon Guerrero further explained
that there are some projects where they didn't spend the money entirely and that they didn't
get to carry out. Chairman Eun questioned if the airline subsidy will be paid from the Korea
marketing budget first, or on the GVB level, to which Ms. Leon Guerrero confirmed that it will
be coming from the Korea Marketing budget, and Mr. Perez further explained that it has
already been allocated from that account. Ms. Benavente made a disclaimer that the budget
shown is not encompassing the entire airline support budget allocated for Korea. Chairman
Eun explained that since there is a commitment from a GVB/Governor’s level, if there is
balance, KMC can be more creative faster. He proposed that GVB spends the money first
and then in case there's any leftover, they can have a second plan on how to deploy that
fund. To add on, Ms. Leon Guerrero said that they’re working on a $5 million budget toward
air service development. She said that although the Governor committed seven to ten



million, they haven’t identified where those additional funds are coming from specifically for
Korea, so they’re working within their means and not committing millions of dollars without
knowing how to pay for it.

7. ANNOUNCEMENTS

● Ms. Benavente announced that last week they sent out the letter regarding the upcoming
Education Fairs in Korea. She noted that the International Education and Career Fair is
normally in April, however, next year’s event will be held on February 1-2, due to an issue
of securing the space at COEX. Ms. Benavente shared that GVB has increased their booth
space this year and encouraged the hotels and education programs to participate and to
email Marketing Manager Ms. Cierra Sulla if interested.

● Ms. Benavente shared that internally they’ve been discussing focusing or doing promotion
in the wedding market and asked the committee to share their feedback or express their
interest. Ms. Leon Guerrero said that years ago GVB was very active in the wedding show
Weddex, also held at COEX, and Guam was always a featured destination. She stated that
it would be good to see if anyone would want to go back to that. She also mentioned that
they have received some interest from a recent focus group, but still needs to be clarified
with more research. Ms. Benavente said they want to work to elevate Guam’s image as a
wedding market because based on some feedback she’s received is that Koreans don’t
have a high image of Guam as a wedding market and don’t consider Guam as a place to
get married. Chairman Eun commented that Korea is culturally different from Japan;
investing more in monetary collection and more attendance is required for that, so
travelling outside of Korea would make collection more difficult. Young Min Kim from
Pacific Islands Club shared that when they had honeymoon business before, their main
wedding couples were second marriages, so they didn’t need to invest. James Rosenberg
from Stroll added that Koreans settle for Guam because they cannot afford Hawaii. He
implied that there isn’t much that they can do to change that, or if they do it will be a very
long process. Mr. Kim said that in Korean culture they have a “remind wedding,” and
photoshoot, so he suggested that is something they can promote, especially for those who
have already gotten married in Guam, and Chairman Eun concurred with that idea. Mr. Kim
also added that PIC has a few customers who come back and ask to stay in the same
room as they did for their honeymoon. Mr. Rosenberg shared that Stroll has had a couple
customers who come to Guam for “baek-il” (celebrating a baby’s 100 days), as well as
couples who are dating and celebrating their 100 days.

● Mr. Rosenberg inquired about the ease/difficulty in bringing pets from Korea to Guam, to
which the committee confirmed it was very difficult. In response, Chairman Eun said that
many airline companies are trying to change the policy to accommodate pet transportation








